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TENNESSEE HOUSING DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS # 31620-00530 
 

FOR LINE OF CREDIT SERVICES 
 

                                               AMENDMENT NUMBER ONE 
 
 

 
DATE:  September 16, 2019 

 
RFP # 31620-00530 is amended as follows: 
 
 
1. State responses to questions and comments in the table below amend and clarify this 

RFP. 
 
Any restatement of RFP text in the Question/Comment column shall NOT be construed as 
a change in the actual wording of the RFP document. 
 
QUESTION / COMMENT STATE RESPONSE 
1.     Will the loans purchased 
from the originating lenders be 
housed in the Agency’s 
operating fund prior to being 
sole to the GSE’s?  
 
 

 YES 

2.       What impact if any will 
the federal governments 
proposed GSE reform have 
on the line of credit?   

  FINAL VERSIONS OF GSE REFORM 
COULD WIDELY VARY AND MAY 
TAKE SOME TIME.  THDA’S 
MANAGEMENT IS PREPARED TO 
REMAIN FLEXIBLE AND RESPOND 
TO THE FINAL VERSION OF GSE 
REFORM. 

3.      Will the loans under 
the line of credit be insured 
by the GSE’s prior to being 
sold to the GSE’s?   

 NO, EACH LOAN MAY CARRY 
MORTGAGE INSURANCE OR BE 
ORIGINATED AT TERMS 
ACCEPTABLE TO THE GSE’S PRIOR 
TO FUNDING BY THDA.   

 



QUESTION / COMMENT STATE RESPONSE 
4.     What is the expected 
line of credit utilization?   

 THIS IS A NEW PRODUCT LINE FOR 
THDA, AND THE UTILIZATION 
RATE IS NOT YET DETERMINABLE.  
THAT BEING SAID, WE ANTICIPATE 
UTILZATION RATES TO VARY 
(MONTH-TO-MONTH, WEEK-TO-
WEEK, DAY-TO-DAY) AS WITH 
HISTORICAL ORIGINATION PEAKS 
AND VALLEYS EXPERIENCED IN 
EXISTING MORTGAGE LOAN 
PRODUCTS.  THDA EXPECTS TO 
USE MORE OF THE $75 MILLION 
LINE OF CREDIT DURING 
HISTORICALLY HIGH-VOLUME 
MONTHS.  BASED ON HFA 
BENCHMARKING, CONVENTIONAL 
LOAN PRODUCTION RANGED UP 
TO $1.2 BILLION OR MORE. 

 
5.       Will the line of credit 
be taxable or tax exempt?   

 THDA IS NOT IN A POSITION TO 
DETERMINE IF THE INCOME 
DERIVED FROM THE LINE OF 
CREDIT WILL BE TAXABLE OR NOT 
TO THE FIRM. 

6.       Based on the flow 
characteristics of $600MM 
in annual production (the 
upper bound of THDA's 
estimates contained in the 
RFP), an average loan size 
of $185,000, and twelve 
days of average dwell 
(observed from the $2.4B in 
loans sold to Fannie Mae and 
Freddie Mac by our 
customers year to date), 
THDA's average funded 
balance on the proposed 
warehouse line of credit 
would be approximately 
$20MM. However, the RFP 
specifies a $75MM facility is 
desirable. Does THDA 
expect significant growth in 
originations during the 
agreement period and/or 
significantly longer dwell 
characteristics associated 
with its production than 
industry averages?   

 SEE REPONSE TO QUESTION #4. 



QUESTION / COMMENT STATE RESPONSE 
 
7. The RFP describes a 
three year agreement term. 
One year agreement terms 
are standard in our industry 
in order to better match 
changing market and 
borrower conditions, such as 
facility size (see first 
question above), dwell 
length, pricing, and 
covenants, during the year. 
These elements change 
frequently, and a one year 
term allows both sides an 
opportunity to adjust the 
facility to match. Would 
THDA consider a one year 
agreement term? 

 A LONGER-TERM AGREEMENT 
PROVIDES A STABLE FUNDING 
SOURCE AND HELPS PROTECT 
THDA’S ABILITY TO FUND LOANS 
AND MAINTAIN A STABLE 
PROGRAM.  
 

8. There are five sub-
units, such as the Mortgage 
Finance Program, within 
THDA's structure. If 
considered individually, 
these sub-units have 
different financial capacities 
to pay back the proposed 
loan. Is THDA or one of 
these sub-units individually 
the borrower under the 
proposed agreement?   

 THDA IS THE BORROWER AND 
WILL USE PROCEEDS FROM THE 
SALE OF LOANS PURCHSED WITH 
THE LINE OF CREDIT TO REPAY 
THE LINE OF CREDIT AND ANY 
ASSOCIATED INTEREST AND FEES.  
THDA DOES NOT INTEND TO 
PLEDGE ASSETS HELD IN THE 
BOND RESOLUTIONS AS 
ADDITIONAL SECURITY FOR THE 
WAREHOUSE CREDIT LINE.  THDA’s 
MOST RECENT AUDITED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE 
LOCATED AT THDA.ORG AND 
DISCLOSED THROUGH EMMA.  
EACH FIRM SHOULD SUBMIT ITS 
BEST PROPOSAL, AND THE 
PROPOSAL SHOULD INCLUDE THE 
FIRM’s FINANCIAL REQUIREMENTS 
AND COVENANTS. 

9. Does THDA seek 
financing for its second lien 
products as well as its first 
lien products within this 
proposed warehouse line of 
credit?   

 NO 

10. Participating lenders 
in correspondent loan 
programs typically receive 
payment proceeds from their 

 NO 



QUESTION / COMMENT STATE RESPONSE 
investors in excess of the 
purchased loan's note 
amount. For example, a 
lender participating in 
THDA's program will sell 
THDA a loan with a note 
amount of $100,000 for 
$102,000. The $2,000 
difference represents the 
participating lender's gross 
revenue associated with the 
loan, comprised of items 
such as the loan's servicing 
release premium (SRP) and 
fee income. However, many 
warehouse lenders limit their 
advances to the note amount. 
Does THDA seek advances 
above the note amount?   
11. The RFP specifies 
that the "line of credit will be 
secured by loans purchased 
with line-of-credit 
proceeds." In the event that 
payoff proceeds for an 
individual loan advance 
received from its investor (in 
this case, Freddie Mac or 
Fannie Mae) do not equal or 
exceed the indebtedness 
associated with the advance, 
will THDA satisfy the 
remaining indebtedness?   

 THDA INTENDS TO SATISFY THE 
REMAINING OBLIGATION.   

12. Some loans cannot be 
sold to Freddie Mac or 
Fannie Mae due to defects 
that are uncovered only after 
purchase from THDA's 
participating lender. Will 
THDA obtain approval from 
additional investors in order 
to insure that additional take-
out options are available?   

 THDA INTENDS TO HAVE 
REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS IN 
PLACE WITH ITS ORIGINATING 
AGENTS/LENDERS TO REQUIRE 
REPURCHASE OF NON-
CONFORMING LOANS BY THE 
ORIGINATING AGENT/LENDER. 

13. Among the Technical 
Requirements contained in 

 THDA EXPECTS ALL STANDARD 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS IN THE 
RFP TO BE INCLUDED IN ANY 



QUESTION / COMMENT STATE RESPONSE 
the RFP is a statement that 
"THDA along with bond 
counsel and the State of 
Tennessee Attorney 
General’s office will 
ultimately draft the 
agreement and all related 
documents." Existing legal 
agreements and funding 
documents supporting 
warehouse lines of credit 
reflect the complexity and 
flexibility needed to support 
mortgage finance needs. 
Does THDA intend to create 
all agreements denovo, or 
will it negotiate existing 
agreements if the candidate 
is already a warehouse 
lender with active 
agreements available for 
review?   

AGREEMENT AND WILL DRAFT 
THE AGREEMENT BASED UPON 
THOSE TERMS.  THDA WOULD 
WELCOME EXISTING 
AGREEMENTS TO USE AS A 
RESOURCE IN THE CRAFTING OF 
SUCH AN AGREEMENT IN ORDER 
TO EXPEDITE THAT PROCESS.  
HOWEVER, THDA WILL 
ULTIMATELY DRAFT THE 
AGREEMENT. 
 

14. What is the expected 
average daily outstanding of 
the line (in percentage or 
dollar amount based on a 
$75MM facility)?   

 SEE RESPONSE TO QUESTION #4 

15. What is the 
anticipated periodicity of 
revolving the line? 

 EVERY 30 DAYS. 
 

16. Is the anticipated take 
out TBA or bond financing? 

 TBA 

17. How does the 
Agency plan to handle loans 
that default after origination 
but prior to securitization?    

 SEE RESPONSE TO QUESTION #13 

18. In the event of a loan 
default, will the Authority 
covenant to replace a 
defaulted loan with a non-
defaulted loan of equal or 
greater value plus interest?   

 NO 

19. What besides the 
loans is the Agency able to 
pledge as security? 

 SEE RESPONSE TO QUESTION #8. 



QUESTION / COMMENT STATE RESPONSE 
20. Will the Agency 
consider pledging any 
available funds for 
repayment of the line? 

 SEE RESPONSE TO QUESTION #9. 

21.  If not, please explain 
whether this is a business 
preference or a legal 
restriction (and if so, what 
that restriction is)   

 FUNDS IN THE GENERAL 
RESOLUTIONS ARE LEGALLY NOT 
AVAILABLE TO BE PLEDGED FOR 
OTHER PURPOSES, EXCEPT IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH THE TERMS 
OF EACH GENERAL RESOLUTION 
AND RESTRICTED FUNDS 
RELATING TO FEDERAL 
PROGRAMS ARE LEGALLY 
REQUIRED TO BE USED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH FEDERAL 
LAWS AND REGULATIONS.   

 
22. Does the Agency 
have the flexibility to 
consider standard domestic 
financial institution structure 
and terms for a transaction of 
this type? (Certain 
provisions in the sample 
contract provided are not 
typical for domestic financial 
institutions to agree to for a 
transaction of this type.)   
 
 
We understand that it is 
THDA’s intention that the 
line of credit will be secured 
by loans purchased with 
line-of-credit proceeds.  
However, we wonder if there 
is any possibility that THDA 
might use its GO pledge as 
additional credit support.   

 SEE RESPONSE TO QUESTION #14. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
THDA DOES NOT HAVE A GO 
RATING.  SEE REPONSE TO #9 

 
 
 
 
2.  Delete RFP VI. TECHNICAL PROPOSAL, Section 2. Technical Requirements in its 

entirety and insert the following in its place: 
 

2. Technical Requirements 



Given the purpose of this line of credit or lines of credit and the information contained in 
Sections I and II, respond to the following: 

 
(a) Describe in detail the line of credit your firm is offering THDA, including but not limited 
to, the term, pricing methodology, optional termination or reduction of commitment provisions, 
prepayment terms, notice requirements, events of default and remedies, deposit requirements, 
reporting requirements, yield protection provisions due to changes in circumstances, etc. 
 
(b) Attach as an exhibit a detailed term sheet summarizing all material covenants and/or 
requirements that you would like to include in the agreement into which THDA would enter with 
your firm. Please also include a Form Agreement (the exhibit and Form Agreement will not be 
counted against the response page limit). Note that THDA along with bond counsel will 
ultimately draft the agreement and all related documents.  
 
(c) Describe any interest rate conversion options, such as conversion of a prime rate loan to a 
LIBOR based loan. Include notice provisions for conversion.    
 
(d) Describe any closing and continuing financial covenants required of THDA for the line 
of credit.  
 
(e) Describe the application of payments made by THDA. 
 
(f) Discuss your firm’s best approach to servicing this line of credit including the methods 
and processes for repaying and re-borrowing, draw request, form of notice for draw requests 
(written, electronic), draw frequency, etc. 


